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STREET AODRESS: 400-402 E. Market Street
MAP & PARCEL:53-55
CENSUS TRACT AND BLOCK. 1-118
PRESENT ZONING:B-4
ORIGINAL OWNER: J. B. Frizell
ORIGINAL USE.
PRESENT USE : Health Food Store § Odd Fellows Hall
PRESENT OWNER Monticello Lodge No. 97,

ADDRESS : Independent Order of Odd Fellows
116 Fourth Street, N. E.
Charlottesville, Virginia

%/ 0’/&/{/{'0(1[[0'71

HISTORIC NAME | Frizell Building - Odd Fellows Hall
DATE / PERIOD : 1884

STYLE ! Victorian Vermacular i

HEIGHT (to cornice}OR STORIES. 2 storeys

DIMENSIONS AND LAND AREA: 55.2' x 68.3'
CONDITION | Good

SURVEYOR . Bibb
DATE OF SURVEY. Winter 1980
SOURCES ' City/County Records
Sanborn Map Co. - 1886, 1891, 1896, 1907, 1920

(3370 sq. ft.)

This is a simple vernacular building which was modernized by the addition of a parapet entablature after the

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

tumn of the century.

It is two storeys tall and six bays wide. Construction is of brick laid in S5-course American

bond on the facade and 6-course els

are two storefronts with recessed central entrances at the first level of
combined into a single large one many years ago.

ewhere. The facade is painted white up to the second storey windowsills. There

the facade, but the two store rooms were
Windows at the second level are segmental-arched, double-sash,

l-over-1 light, with wooden sills. There is a large inset panel in each bay above the second storey level. The
windows are unevenly spaced, and the panels are of unequal size and not centered above the windows. Corbeled
brackets at the tops of the inset panels Support a projecting wooden cornice with paneled frieze and dentil
moulding which continues across the Fourth Street elevation also. This appears to have been added later, probably
over some sort of brick comnice on the facade only. The building extends back five bays along Fourth Street.
Windows match those on the facade, but several at the first level have been bricked up. There is also a

basement entrance in the fourth bay. The entrance to the Odd Fellows Hall on the second level is in the fifth

bay: the recessed entrance has double doors with a semi-circular transom above a plain panel. Pilasters of gray
pressed brick support a moulded round arch of the same material.

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

J. B. Frizell bought this lot in 1883 (ACDB 82-431) and the next

year erected what the 1886 Sanborn map
reported as a 3-storey brick building.

Later Sanborn maps show the building as two-storeys. It is possible

that a drop in the 1891 tax appraisal might indicate that the third storey had been removed, but as there is no
architectural evidence of that, it seems more likely that the 1886 map was in error. An almost illegible sign
painted on the side wall gives the name of the business, the Alliance Co-operative, which the Sanborn maps indicate
occupied the building in the 1880's and 1890's. J. R. Wingfield bought the property in 1890 (City DB 2-236) and
sold it to the Monticello Lodge No. 97, Independent Order of Odd Fellows, in 1910 (DB 22-171). The frontispiece

stair entrance on the Fourth Street side and the wooden parapet en

tablature were probably added at that time.
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IDENTIFICATION

Street Address: Y282~ 42X &TW&L
Map and Parcel: (£ F - 5T

Census Track & Block:

Present Owner: W/zf,@%—’

Address: W
Present Use: M Sﬁci% wl
Original Owner: J‘E

Omgma Use: Z

295t

BASE DATA

Date/Period: /W‘% @%F%%

Style: Vm VW

Height to Cornice:
Height in Stories: =

Present Zoning: Z7- &«
Land Area (sq.ft.): ST R xEF T

Assessed Vaiue (land + imp.):

distoric Name:
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ATTEQTIEAL DESORIPTION
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HISTORICAL TIsCRIPTION
J. L. Prizeil boughb this izt in 10907 (277 872421} and the next vear erected
vhat the 15839 Janboyn mar rep 1as A
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An elmost illegible signpon the side wall sives the name of ihe businesy, Vhe
Allience Uo-pperative, wiich the Tenbom maps indicate cocupied chie vailding
in the 1530%s =nd 1R90's, J. Fo Viagfieid hought the yroperiy in 13¢0 (saty DB

2-256) and gold it Lo the Montleelle Loige Yo, 97, Independent Jrder of* odd
Pellows, in 1G1C (O 22=171}. Tre frentispiece stalr ertrance on the Fourth St.
side and the wooden perapat ontobleture were probably added al that Linc.
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